ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
February 9, 2017
10: 03 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Loui se Stutes, Chair
Represent ati ve Zach Fansl er
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns
Representative Geran Tarr
Representati ve M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve David East man

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Mark Neuman
OTHER LEG SLATI VE MEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Dan Otiz
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 87
"An Act relating to participation in matters before the Board of
Fi sheries and the Board of Gane by the nenbers of the respective
boards; and providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 87

SHORT TITLE: CONFLICT OF | NTEREST: BD FI SHERI ES/ GAMVE
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) STUTES

01/ 30/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 17 (H) FSH, RES
02/ 09/ 17 (H) FSH AT 10: 00 AM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

REI D HARRI S, St af f
Representative Loui se Stutes
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- February 9, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the proposed committee substitute
(CS) for HB 87, on behalf of Representative Stutes, prine
sponsor.

GLENN HAI GHT, Executive Director

Board of Fish (BOF)

Boar ds Support Section

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the hearing
on HB 87.

SETH BEAUSANG, Assi stant Attorney General

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the hearing
on HB 87.

SAM COTTEN, Conmi ssi oner

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 87, and
responded to questions.

KRI STY TI BBLES, Executive Director

Board of Gane (BOG

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the hearing
of HB 87.

CLAY KOPLI N, Mayor

City of Cordova

Cordova, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 87.

MATT ALWARD, Fi sher man
Homer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 87.

MALCCOLM M LNE, President

North Pacific Fisheries Association (NPFA)

Hormer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 87.

JOHN MCCOVBS

Ni nil chik, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 87.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- February 9, 2017



STEVE VANEK
Ni ni | chi k, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 87.

GERRY MCCUNE, Representative

Uni ted Fi shernen Al aska (UFA)

Cordova District Fishernmen United

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 87.

ROD ARNO, Executive Director

Al aska Qut door Counci

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified with opposition to HB 87.

RI CHARD DAVI S, Representative

Seaf ood Producers Cooperative

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 87.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 03: 50 AM

CHAIR LOU SE STUTES called the House Special Committee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 10:03 a.m Representatives Stutes,
Tarr, Eastman, and Chenault were present at the call to order.
Representatives Fansler, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Otiz arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 87- CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST: BD FI SHERI ES/ GAME

10: 04: 59 AM

CHAI R STUTES announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 87, "An Act relating to participation in matters
before the Board of Fisheries and the Board of Ganme by the
nmenbers of the respective boards; and providing for an effective
date."

10: 05: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS), |abeled 30-LS0376\U, Bruce/Bullard, 2/9/17, as the working
docunent .

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- February 9, 2017



10: 06: 03 AM

CHAI R STUTES obj ected for di scussion.

10: 06: 18 AM

REID HARRIS, Staff, Representative Louise Stutes, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, presented the proposed commttee substitute (CS)
for HB 87, Version U, directing attention to the handout issued
fromthe chair's office |abeled, "Summary of Changes - Version A
to Version U " and paraphrasing from the prepared | anguage,
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

Section 1. (9g)

Elimnates reference to AS 16.05 (Fish and Gane Code),
AS 16.40.261 (Salt water sport fishing operator
license), AS 16.40.271 (Salt water sport fishing guide
license, conbined guide/operator |I|icense), AS 16.43
(Regul ation of Entry into Al aska Comrercial Fisheries)
and 08.54 (Big Gane Cuides and Rel ated Cccupations).

Changes the word “conflict” to “personal or financial
interest” (as defined in AS 39.52. 960).

Defines, for the purposes of this act, what an
imrediate famly nenber is. This definition differs
from the definition in 39.52.960, which also includes
grandparents, aunts/uncles, parents or siblings of a
person’ s spouse.

Sec. 2 is deleted

Sec. 3 is deleted

Sec. 4 Is deleted
MR. HARRIS pointed out that the statutory definition for famly
nmenbers is broad and overly inclusive for the purpose of serving
on the board. The conflicts cause recusals that may affect the
pr ocess. The sponsor seeks to redefine famly nenbers for

pur poses of board participation.

10: 08: 20 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- February 9, 2017



CHAI R STUTES wi t hdrew her objection. Wthout further
Version U was before the commttee.

10: 08: 29 AM

obj ecti on,

MR. HARRI S explained that Version U allows a conflicted nenber

to deliberate but refrain from voting. He provided
outline of the proposed |egislation, paraphrasing
sponsor statement, which read as follows [origina
provi ded] :

a succi nct
from the
punct uati on

House Bill 87 changes the manner that the Board of

Fi sheries and Board of Game function. It

al | ows

menbers to deliberate on subjects for which they have
a declared personal or financial interest according to

AS 39.52, the Ethics Act.

Title 39 prohibits a nenber from “taking or

wi thholding official action in order to aff
matter in which the nenber has a personal or fin

ect a
anci al

interest.” (AS 39.52.120(b)(4)). “Oficial action” is

defined under the Act to nean “advice, particip
or assi st ance, i ncl udi ng for exanpl e
recommendati on, decision, approval, disapproval,

or other simlar action, including inaction

public officer.” (AS 39.52.960(14)).

ation,

) a

vot e,
by a

Currently, Board nenbers are required to divulge a
conflict of interest if they or their famlies are

involved in the subject being deliberated on.
conflicted nmenber can then no |onger offer their
on the process and cannot vote on the matter at
This bill allows the conflicted nenber to

The
i nput
hand.
of fer

remarks and input, but the nenber still cannot vote on
the issue. The nenber is also precluded fromvoting on

whet her they have a conflict of interest. Al

| owi ng

nmenbers with expertise in particular fields to
deliberate wll help the Board make nore inforned
decisions and lead to stronger fisheries managenent

st at ewi de.

10: 09: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN noted the concern regarding

the broad

definition for famly nenbers, and asked if this is in response

to an existing problemor a proactive consideration.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- Febru

ary 9, 2017



MR HARRIS offered that expertise is lost when nenbers are
required to recuse thensel ves from deli beration and voting. The

bill changes that scenario by narrowing the scope of the
definition for famly nenbers that could be ethically invoked
for reasons of personal or financial interests. He deferred

further comment to d enn Haight.

10: 10: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR noted that the proposed change in the
definition of famly nenbers will only apply to this bill and
not affect other areas of statute.

MR. HARRIS referred to the CS, page 1, line 12, to point out the
| anguage provided to define "imediate famly nenber" for
pur poses of HB 87 and persons serving on the Board of Fish (BOF)
or the Board of Gane (BOG, wthout altering the ethics act
| anguage found in AS 39.52. 960.

MR. HARRIS pointed out that the BOF also manages personal use
fisheries.

10:12: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN restated his interest in know ng why the
bill is necessary.

GLENN HAI GHT, Executive Director, Board of Fish (BOF), Boards
Support Section, Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&5), said
there have been seven bills introduced, since 1995, seeking to
amend the ethics act specifically for the BOCF. He offered to
make available a record of the ethics recusals that the BOF has
experienced over the last nine years, and the inpacts; produced
by Jim Marcotte, former Executive Director of the BOF.

CHAI R STUTES interjected that there is precedent for this need
as happened recently at a BOF neeting, when a nenber recused and
t he outconme of the issue at hand was affected.

MR. HAI GHT described what occurred at the nost recent finfish
BOF neeting, held in Kodiak. A nmenber who did not fish or
benefit directly fromthe fishery being discussed, had to recuse
because of the participation of her ex-husband, from whom she
recei ves noney. Because of the recusal, the proposal did not
pass.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- February 9, 2017



CHAI R STUTES added that the vote ended three to three, and could
have gone either way had the seventh nenber been allowed to
vot e.

10: 14: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS clarified that under the proposed
bill, the board nmenmber woul d not have had to recuse.

MR. HAI GHT concurred, and said HB 87 narrows the definition of
famly nenber significantly; designating immediate famly
nmenbers as a spouse or direct dependent. He said the recused
menber woul d have been able to participate, if HB 87 had been
t he governing statute.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKINS asked how this relates to the
Board of Gane (BOG, and whether the concern is conparable
bet ween the two boards.

MR. HAI GHT responded that conflict doesn't occur with the sane
frequency at BOG neetings. He suggested that it only happens
occasionally, such as when a nmenber is also an active gane guide
and nust recuse on an issue.

10:17: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked for further information regarding
t he Kodi ak recusal situation.

MR. HAI GHT deferred coment to the Departnment of Law (DOL).

10:18:40 AM

SETH BEAUSANG Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law
(DAL), offered that the nmenber had disclosed a financial
interest with a participant of the fishery being considered.

10:19: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  EASTMAN i nquired about a famly nmenber
participating in a personal use fishery, and how the definition
woul d apply to that scenario.

MR. HAIGHT said personal use/subsistence fisheries don't cause
conflict, as no financial gain is involved.

10: 20: 49 AM

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- February 9, 2017



CHAI R STUTES said that the BOF and BOG are governed under the
sane statutes, thus, both entities are addressed in the bill.

10: 21: 24 AM

SAM COTTEN, Commi ssioner, Alaska Departnment of Fish & Gane
(ADF&G), stated official support for the proposed CS to HB 87
and said it addresses an inportant issue and serves to inprove
the current system which probably, unnecessarily results in
recusal s by board nenbers.

10: 22: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if, under a circunstance as nmentioned
today when a proposal failed due to a tie vote, are there
opportunities to bring the sane proposal back before the board.

COWM SSI ONER COTTEN responded yes, and deferred further comrent
on regardi ng procedures for proposal reconsideration.

10: 23: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS noted that simlar bills have been
proposed by ot her |egislatures, and asked why none have passed.

COM SSI ONER COTTEN said it's an inviting subject but it would
be difficult to know why | egislation doesn't get passed.

CHAIR STUTES added that it would be difficult to comrent on
bills that aren't avail able for conparison.

10: 25: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked what conflicting out situations arise
at BOG neetings, other than the recusal of an active guide, as
previously nentioned. She asked specifically about renote | odge
operators.

KRI STY TIBBLES, Executive Director, Board of Gane (BOG reported
that financial conflicts haven't occurred but spousal conflicts
have arisen. She recounted an instance of a board nenber's
spouse, who served on an advisory comrittee which had taken a
vote on an active proposal that was com ng before the board; the
menber recused. Due to the potential for financial conflict, if
a proposal was before the BOG that inpacted an owner of a renote
| odge, it would represent a conflict.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- February 9, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE TARR inquired whether there is a conflict if a
BOG nenber is also a nenber of a hunting organi zati on.

M5. TIBBLES replied that a conflict wouldn't exist if the board
menber is in the general nenbership of an organization, but if
they are an officer in the organization and sit on its board, it
woul d represent a conflict.

10: 28: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN asked how many board nenbers are seated
on the BOG

M5. TI BBLES answered seven.
REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN queried what the downside would be for
observing simlar rules as the legislative comittee, where a

menber di scloses the conflict but is not prevented from voting.

M5. TIBBLES answered, "There's a potential that sonething
carries or fails that wouldn't have otherw se had that action."

CHAI R STUTES opened public testinony.

10: 30: 06 AM

CLAY KOPLIN, Mayor, City of Cordova, stated support for HB 87
and said Cordova depends largely on the fishing industry, which
is extrenely active and productive for a brief, three nonth

peri od. It is difficult to find soneone to serve on the board
due to the tine commtnent involved and concerns that
participation would be restricted due to possible conflicts. It

is a problemfor ensuring that the voice of experience and those
who work in the industry are heard. The bill could rectify the
situation and bring voices to the table that otherwi se aren't
heard, he said; voices that are close to what is actually
happeni ng.

10: 33: 36 AM

MATT ALWARD, Fisherman stated support for HB 87 and echoed the
concern that well vetted, appointed people, commtting a nonth
of their time, nust sit out of deliberations and voting. He
predicted that the bill wll enrich the board process and bring
better regul ation overall.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 9- February 9, 2017



10: 34: 48 AM

MALCOLM M LNE, President, North Pacific Fisheries Association
(NPFA), stated official support for HB 87 and said finding
qualified nmenbers to serve on the board can be challenging and
allowng conflicted nenbers to deliberate on issues wll add
expertise, and nake for nore robust discussions that lead to
better decisions.

10: 36: 21 AM

JOHN MCCOWBS stated support for HB 87 and said it's a good
start. Menbers who have attended the Kenai Cassic have
received gifts, which should be disclosed to ensure ethics
conpl i ance, he opined. The board has not net in Soldotna for
seventeen years, and it needs to be included in the neeting
| ocale rotation. Q her inprovenents could also be made to

i nprove the public, board process, he finished.

10: 37: 39 AM

STEVE VANEK stated support for HB 87 and said as a |ayman board
it's necessary to allow participation, at least in the
del i berati on process. The non-comercial fishermen that sit on
the board don't get <conflicted out, only the commercia
oper at or . He stressed the need to allow all the nenbers to

del i berate equally on issues.

10: 40: 10 AM

GERRY MCCUNE, Representative, United Fishernen Al aska (UFA),
Cordova District Fishermen United, stated official support for
HB 87 and offered that if he were serving on the BOF today he
woul d be conflicted out and end up sitting in the audience. The
fifty years of experience and expertise that he could share
woul d be of no benefit at the neeting. He described incidents
of past nenbers who were recused due to situations that m ght
have been considered m ninal. Changing the definition, as
proposed, will correct a |long standing problem he finished.

10:41:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR confirned that, even with the passage of HB
87, if a board nenber was being unethical, other statute could
be appli ed.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -10- February 9, 2017



MR. MCCUNE responded that any board nenber could bring an
et hical challenge for consideration. Di scl osures are wusually
provi ded beforehand but challenges are also brought up during
pr oceedi ngs.

10: 43: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT noted the |egal services nenorandum in
the coommttee packet, and asked who naekes the determ nation that
a conflict exists.

CHAI R STUTES responded that it is the purview of the BOCF
chai r man.

10: 44: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER recalled that there is also a bil
seeking to expand the board from seven to nine nenbers, and
asked, if adopted, would that influence UFA support for HB 87.

MR. MCCUNE answered that UFA does not support expanding the

board wuntil the conflict issue is solved. The financi al
di scl osure requirenent and being conflicted out prohibits many
possi bl e nenbers from seeking appointnent. There would be no
need to expand the board size if conflict was still a problem

10: 47: 25 AM

ROD ARNO, Executive Director, Alaska Qutdoor Council, stated

opposition to HB 87 and said he has not attended a neeting where
the person conflicted out hasn't had an opportunity to express

their opinion and had their input be part of the process. The
bill is not necessary, nor is it beneficial to the resource, he
opi ned.

10: 49: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS asked to what extent a conflicted
menber is able to testify at the table, and are they restricted
to three mnutes the sane as a nmenber of the public.

MR. ARNO answered that on the BOG there is no limtation, but
the BOF follows a different conmttee process.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS queried whether applying the bill
only to the BOF would change M. Arno's stance of opposition.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -11- February 9, 2017



MR.  ARNO answered that the <concern remains the sane and
suggested that the public would be leery to that type of action.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS recalled the previously described
scenario with the ex-spouse situation, causing the nenber to
recuse, and asked whether allowing that nenber to participate
under the described circunstances, would have clouded the
process or inpair the public's faith.

MR. ARNO opi ned that it would have cl ouded the process.

10: 52: 45 AM

RICHARD DAVIS, Representative, Seafood Producers Cooperative,
stated support for HB 87 and said the producers cooperative has
sought this type of legislation for three decades. \Wenever the
BOF neets, cooperative nenbers always attend to provide

t esti nony. The existing protocol nmakes it difficult to find
qual ified, dedicated people willing to serve on the BOF and this
bill provides hope to change that scenario. It is an essentia

conponent for continuing to responsibly manage the fisheries of
the state, he finished.

CHAI R STUTES cl osed public testinony.

10: 54: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS commented that the bill appears to
be a comobn sense inprovenent to the current procedures. He
opined that the testinony is conpelling, regarding the faint and
indirect relationships that inpair a nenber's participation on
the BOF in a way that harnms the overall dial ogue.

10: 55: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN referred to the portion of the bill that
nmentions a personal or financial interest, and asked whether a
menber, or fam |y nmenber, who actively participates or advocates
for a personal use fishery, "be caught up in this new | anguage."”

MR. BEAUSANG responded that the terns "personal interest” and
"financi al interest" are defined wunder the ethics act.
Participation in a personal wuse fishery would not involve
financial interest, he opined, and pointed out that there is no
history of a nmenber disclosing participation in a personal use
fishery and being found in conflict.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -12- February 9, 2017



10: 57: 29 AM

CHAI R STUTES thanked the participants and announced HB 87 as
hel d.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Conmttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 10:57
a.m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -13- February 9, 2017



